
basis of partition. For that reason he requested 
the representatives on the First Committee to 
consider seriously the Syrian proposal which 
" ·onld guarantee the Jews a friendly home and 
a chance to develop the whole of the :Middle 
East. In this connexion he pointed out that 
although they were a small minority in every 
country, the Jews were able to dominate economic 
life, as for example in the United States and 
Germany. Partition of Palestine would be to 
the advantage of only the small minority of 
.Jews who were Zionists. Less than one-third 
of the Jews in Palestine were Palestinian citizens ; 
how could they justly be given the right to 
establish a State ? The United Nations Charter 
was designed to protect the rights of the weaker 
peoples. The prestige of the United Nations 
\Yould suiTer if it continued to take illegal action 
against the weaker party and allowed the stronger 
party to defy its resolutions. 

l\Ir. Br.::ELEY (United Kingdom) denied Mr. 
Eban's suggestion that the United Kingdom 
delegation was asserting that the Mediator's 
conclusions were to be placed on the same 
footing as the Assembly's resolution of November 
1947. H e said that actually the United Kingdom 
delegation was aksing the Assembly to take 
a decision on the relation between the resolution 
of 29 November and subsequent events, and in 
this regard the importance of the Mediator's 
report was still to be determined. Mr. Eban 
had implied that the 29 November resolution 
was final, but while the Assembly's resolutions 
constituted recommendations, and had moral 
weight, they certainly were not law, much less 
unalterable law. The General Assembly had 
realized that the Palestine problem had not 
been finally settled by its resolution of 29 No­
vember, and when the Mediator was appointed 
by the resolution of 14 May 1948, he was asked 
to report to the Assembly. The United Kingdom 
delegation was only asking the Assembly to be 
consistent in this matter and to make recommend­
ations in the light of its own past work and of 
the present situation in Palestine. 

On the motion of the representative of EGYPT, 
who stated that he had a number of observations 
to make on the section of the document under 
discussion, the meeting was adjourned until 
the following day. 

The meeting rose at 5.50 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND SEVENTEENTH 
MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillol, Paris, on Tuesday, 
30 November 1948, al10.30. a. m. 

Chairman : l\Ir. A. CosTA Du RELS (Bolivia). 

86. Continuation of the discussion on the 
progress report of the United Nations 
Mediator on Palestine (A/648) 

Co~TINUATION OF THE CONSIDERATION OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED TABULATION PREPARED BY THE 
WORKING GROUP (AjC.1j403). 

808 

Juifs sur Ia base du plan de partage. C'est pourquoi 
l\I. El-Khouri demande instamment aux membres 
de Ia Premiere Commission de prendre en serieuse 
consideration la proposition syrienne, quigarantira 
aux Juifs un foyer tranquille et qui permettra 
de developper tout le l\Ioyen Orient. A ce propos, 
il fait remarquer que, tout en constituant dans Ies 
divers pays une petite minorite, Ies Juifs arrivent 
a devenir les maitres de la vie economique, 
et il cite lcs cas des Etats-Unis et de I'Allemagne. 
Le partage de Ia Palestine ne profitera qu'a cette 
faible minorite de Juifs que sont les sionistes. 
:Moins d'un tiers des Juifs de Palestine sont 
citoyens palestiniens; comment peut-on, en 
tonte justice, leur donner le droit d'etablir un 
Etat? La Charte des Nations Unies a et e etahlie 
pour proteger les droits des peuples faibles, et le 
prestige des Nations Unies soufirirait grandement 
si elles continuaient a prendre contre Ie faible 
des mesures illegales, tout en permettant au 
fort de braver leurs resolutions. 

l\I. BEELEY (Royaume-Uni) dement que la 
delegation du Royaume-Uni ait pretendu, comme 
l'a laisse entendre l\1. Eban, que les conclusions 
du lVIediateur etaient a mettre sur le meme 
plan que la resolution de l' Assemblee de novembre 
19,18. En rca lite, elle demande a l' Assemblee 
de decider quel rapport il y a eu entre Ia resolution 
du 29 novembre et les evenements ulterieurs, 
et, de ce point de vue, il reste encore a determiner 
!'importance du rapport du Mediateur. l\1. Eban 
a Jaisse entendre que Ia resolution du 29 novembre 
etait definitive ; mais, si les resolutions de 
l' Assembh~e constituent des recommandations de 
grande force morale, elles n'ont assurement pas 
force de loi, et encore mains de loi immuable. 
L'Assemblee gcnerale a compris que sa resolution 
du 29 novembre n'avait pas resolu definitivement 
Ie probleme palestinien, et quand elle a designc 
le Mediateur par sa resolution du 14 mai 1948, 
elle lui a demande de faire rapport a l' Assemblee 
generale. La delegation du Royaume-Uni demande 
simplement a l'Assemblee d'etre consequente 
avec elle-meme en cette affaire et de tenir compte, 
dans les recommandations qu'elle presente, de 
ce qu'elle a fait deja dans le passe et de la situation 
actuelle en Palestine. 

Sur proposition du representant de l'EGYPTE, 
qui declare qu'il a un certain nombre d'obser­
vations a presenter sur la partie du document 
en cours de discussion, Ia suite des debats est 
remise au lendemain. 

La seance est levee a 17 h. 50. 

DEUX-CENT-DIX-SEPTIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le mardi 30 novembre 1948, a 10 h. 30. 

President : M. A. CosTA DU RELs (Bolivie). 

86. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport 
interimaire du Mediateur des Nations 
Unies pour la Palestine (A/648) 

SUITE DE L'EXA!\1EN DU TABLEAU RECAPITULATIF 
PREPARE PAR LE GROUPE DU TRAVAIL (AjC. 
1/403). 



Section III. General principles (continued). 

. FAwZI Bey (Egypt) began by stating that the 
~hscussion of the general principles contained 
m section III of the working document (A.jC. 
! /40~) should also be extended to the preamble 
m VIew of the fact that they had elements in 
common. 

Before the General Assembly had adopted 
resolution 181 (II) of 29 November 1947, the 
Egyptian delegation had pointed out that the 
United Nations had no authority to set up 
new States, to control their existence or to 
partition them. Egypt still held that view. 
In particular, the Egyptian delegation had 
requested on 13 October 1947 that the Inter­
national Court of Justice should be consulted 
to determine whether the Assembly had the 
power, under the Charter, to set up States and to 
partition them. That proposal had been rejected 
by one vote in the ad hoc Committee and the 
Assembly had adopted the resolution of 29 No­
vember 1947, although the majority felt misgiving 
as to the power of the United Nations to take 
measures with regard to the existence of States. 
In any event, the Egyptian delegation had no 
doubt that the resolution was not in conformity 
with the Charter. Furthermore, it could not but 
feel a certain resentment at the failure to refer 
the question to the International. Court of 
Justice for an advisory opinion. In addition, 
even assuming that the resolution were legal, 
it was at most a mere recommendation ; it was 
not a law and did not lay down rights. 

Fawzi Bey said experience had shown that the 
resolution had destroyed peace and order in 
Palestine and in neighbouring States. Moreover, 
the Security Council had been obliged to convene 
a special session of the General Assembly to 
consider the Palestine question " without preju­
dice to the rights, claims or positions " of the 
parties. On 14 May 1948, the Assembly adopted 
a resolution [186 (S-2)] which called upon the 
Security Council to make fresh efforts to achieve a 
peaceful settlement of the situation in Palestine. 
That resolution relieved the Palestine Commission 
of its functions, thereby admitting that the 
Commission had been unable to accomplish its 
task, in particular, that of determining the 
frontiers between the Arab and Jewish parts 
of Palestine under the terms of the resolution 
of 29 November. It was therefore clear that in 
succeeding resolutions, the Security Council 
had abandoned the principles set forth in the 
November resolution. 

The tendency of certain representatives to fall 
back upon the resolution of 29 November 1947 
was to be explained by the recognition of a 
fait accompli. The New Zealand representative 
had recently observed, for example, that the 
Jews had succeded in establishing themselves in 
Palestine. Had not Hitler, Mussolini and the 
Japanese had similar success ? Was that suffi­
cient reason to ratify and legalize the fait accompli? 

Section I II. Principes generaux (suite) 

M. FAWZI Bey (Egypte) rappelle tout d'abord 
que la discussion des principes gencraux contenus 
a la section III du document de travail (AJC. 
1/403) devrait porter egalement sur le prcam­
bule, etant donne que l'un et !'autre contiennent 
des elements communs. 

II rappelle .que la delegation egyptienne avait 
declare, avant !'adoption par l'Assemblee de Ia 
resolution 181 (II) du 29 novembre 1947, que 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies n'avait pas 
autorite pour creer des Etats nouveaux, pour 
regir leur existence ou pour les partager. L'Egypte 
maintient ce point de vue. En particulier, la 
delegation egyptienne avait demande, le 13 oc­
tobre 1947, que la Cour internationale de Justice 
flit consultce sur le point de savoir si l'Assemblee, 
aux termes de la Charte, avait le droit de crcer 
des Etats et de les partager. Cette proposition 
a etc rejetee a une voix de majorite au sein de Ia 
Commission ad hoc et l' Assemblee adopta Ia 
resolution du 29 novembre 1947 bien que la 
majorite des Membres de l'Assemblee generale 
eprouvat des doutes sur Ie droit de !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies de statuer sur !'existence des 
Etats. En tout etat de cause, la delegation egyp­
tienne, elle, n'eprouve aucun doute sur la non­
conformite de cette resolution avec la Charte. 
De plus, elle ne peut s'empecher de regretter que 
la question n'ait pas ete renvoyee ala Cour inter­
nationale de Justice pour avis consultatif. En 
outre, meme a supposer que cette resolution flit 
legale, elle n'est, tout au plus, qu'une simple 
recommandation; elle n' est pas une loi et elle 
ne permet pas de creer des droits. 

L' orateur fait remarquer que l' experience a 
prouve que cette resolution avait detruit la paix 
et l' ordre en Palestine et dans les Etats voisins. 
De plus, Ie Conseil de securite fut force de convo­
quer une session extraordinaire de I' Assemblee 
generale en vue d'examiner la question de Pales­
tine << sans prejudice des droits des parties, de 
leurs revendications et pouvoirs >>. Le 14 mai 1948, 
cette Assemblee extraordinaire adopta une reso­
lution [186 (S-2)] invitant a nouveau le Conseil 
de securitc a faire des efforts en vue d'un ajus­
tement pacifique de Ia situation en Palestine. Cette 
resolution dechargeait la Commission pour la 
Palestine de ses fonctions. C'etait la la consta­
tation que cette Commission avait etc dans l'impos­
sibilite de mener a bien sa tache, et notamment 
celle de delimiter les frontieres entre les parties 
arabes et juives de la Palestine, aux termes de la 
resolution du 29 novembrc. II est done clair que, 
dans ses resolutions successives, le Conseil de 
securite a abandonne les principes enonces dans 
cette resolution. 

Le representant de l'Egypte estime, en conse­
quence, que la tendance de certains representants 
de retourner a la resolution du 29 novembre 1947 
s'explique par Ia reconnaissance du fait accompli. 
Le representant de la Nouvelle-Zelande faisait 
recemment remarquer, par exemple, que les 
Juifs avaient rcussi a s'imposer en Palestine. 
Est-ce que Hitler, l\fussolini et les Japonais 
n'avaient pas reussi cgalement a s'imposer. 
Etait-ce une raison suffisante pour ratifier et 
lcgitimer le fait accompli '? 

809 



Fawzi Bey recalled that in 1947 the General 
Assembly had on a number of occasions bowed 
to the fail accompli and to the use of violence. 
The League of Nations had also adopted a similar 
attitude, when in 1931 the Japanese claimed 
to be acting " on the defensive " in Manchuria, 
in connexion with the Mukden incident, and 
rapidly succeeded in making a complete conquest 
of that area. If, two years later, Hitler's attempt 
at an Anschluss failed, it was not the result 
of action taken by the League of Nations, but 
solely to the opposition of Mussolini. In 1935 
l\lussolini had been able to ridicule the Covenant 
of the League of Nations, which he described 
as a " dead letter ". The price of such a policy 
of submission to violence had been paid later by 
the massacres organized by Mussolini and Hitler, 
by the blood and suiTcring of millions of families 
all over the world. At the end of the war, 
the leaders of the democratic nations had taken 
the shortcomings of the League of Nations 
into account in planning a new organization of 
nations. They had been anxious that the 
United Nations should not merely affirm the ideal 
of peace, but should also have the means of 
defending it. But the first step had not yet 
been taken towards drawing up the special 
agreements for the creation of an international 
force in accordance with Article 43 of the Charter 
In the meantime, Article 106, which conferred 
the responsibility for the maintenance of peace 
on the great Pov,·ers, was still applicable. 

The successive orders of the Security Council 
with regard to Palestine had been systematically 
ignored by the Zionists. On 29 May, the Security 
Council had contemplated the use of sanctions 
if its orders were not complied with. No deci­
sions had, however, been taken to end the 
repeated violations of the Security Council's 
decisions by the Zionists, who continued to 
occupy more and more territory in Palestine, 
driving before them thousands of Arab families, 
who were obliged to seek refuge in neighbouring 
States. Prominent Zionists had declared that 
the Jews had no intention of withdrawing from 
the territories captured by force of arms in the 
Negeb, Galilee and elsewhere. The Jewish repre­
sentative in Washington had recently stated 
that the Jews would not give up control of the 
Negeb, which, he said, was their sovereign 
possession and that the territories which they 
occupied would be obstinately defended. He had 
added that the Negeb was the only reserve of 
territory which the Jews possessed for the 
purpose of intensive colonization. There was 
an example of Jewish defiance of the Security 
Council and the United Nations, which were 
nevertheless prepared to yield to such acts of 
force. 

Count Bernadette, despite his good intentions, 
had also embarked on a dangerous course by 
accepting the fait accompli. His proposals . of 
27 June presented difficulties from the standpomt 
of law, justice and respect for the Charter. 
Nevertheless, from 27 June to 12 September, 
Zionist acts of violence continued and a large 
number of Arabs were driven out of the country 
to make room for Jewish immigrants. The 
:rviediator had accepted that aggravation of the 
situation. In his report of 12 September, he 

810 

Fawzi Bey rappelle que, en 1947, l'Assemblee 
gencrale s'est inclinee plusieurs fois devant le 
fait accompli et la violence. La Societe des Nations, 
elle aussi, avait adopte cette attitude lorsque, 
en 1931, a propos de !'incident de Moukden, 
les Japonais pretendirent qu'ils se « defendaient >> 

en l\Iandchourie et parvinrent rapidement a 
conquerir cette region tout entiere. Si deux ans 
apres, la tentative d'Anschluss d'Hitler echoua, 
ce ne fut pas a cause de la Societe des Nations, 
mais uniquement parce que Mussolini s'y opposa. 
En 1935, Mussolini put tourner en derision le 
Pactc de la Societe des Nations, qu'il qualifiait 
de << lettre morte ». Le prix de cette politique de 
soumission a la violence fut paye plus tard par les 
massacres organises par Mussolini et Hitler, par 
le sang et les souffrances de millions de familles 
dans le monde. A la fin de la guerre, les chefs 
des nations democratiques ont tenu compte des 
lacunes de la Societe des Nations dans leur projet 
d'une organisation nouvelle des nations. Ils 
voulaient que !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
non seulement affirme leur ideal de paix, mais 
possede les moyens de dcfendre la paix. 
Cependant, les accords speciaux prevus a !'Article 
43 de la Charte, en vue de Ia creation d'une force 
internationale n'ont pas encore re<;u de commen­
cement d'execution et, en attendant, l'Article 106 
confcrent la responsabilite du maintien de la 
paix aux grandes Puissances s'applique toujours. 

Le representant de l'Egypte signale ensuite 
que les ordres successifs du Conseil de securite 
en ce qui concerne Ia Palestine sont ignores 
systematiquement par les sionistes. Le 29 mai, 
le Conseil de securite avait envisage !'application 
de sanctions dans le cas ou ses ordres ne seraient 
pas appliques; cependant, aucune decision n'a 
ete prise pour mettre fin aux violations conti­
nuelles des decisions du Conseil de securite par 
les sionistes qui continuent a occuper de plus en 
plus de territoire en Palestine, chassant devant 
eux des milliers de families arabes obligees de se 
refugier dans les Etats voisins. De hautes person­
nalites sionistes ont declare que les J uifs n'avaient 
pas !'intention de se retirer des territoires occupes 
par la force des armes dans le Negeb, en Galilee 
et ailleurs. Le representant juif a Washington a 
recemment declare que les Juifs ne perdraie~t 
pas le controle du Negeb, qui leur appar_te~art 
felon lui en toute souverainete et que les t erntorres 
occupes par eux seraient defendt~s opiniatrement. 
Il a ajoute que le Negeb constituait la seule 
reserve de territoire dont les Juifs disposaient 
en vue d'une colonisation intensive. Voila !'expres­
sion du defi lance par les Juifs au Conseil .de 
securite et a l'Oraanisation des Nations Umes 
qui, malgre tont, ;e soumet a ces actes de force. 

FA wz1 Bey estime que Ie comte Bernadette, 
malare scs bonnes intentions, s'etait egalement 
eng;ge dans une voie dangereuse en admet~a~t 
le fait accompli. Ses propositions du ~7 JUin 

etaient facheuses du point de vue du droit,. de ]a 
justice et du respect de la Charte. Toute~ors! du 
27 juin au 12 septembre, les violences des swmstes 
coutinuerent et un grand nombre d:~rabes 
furent expulses pour faire place a des immJgra!lts 
juifs. Le Mediateur accepta cette aggravatwn 
de Ia situation. Dans son rapport du 12 septembre, 



included Jaffa in Jewish territory ; Haifa was 
pushed farther and farther back into the zone 
assigned to the Jews, while the whole of Galilee 
was offered to the Zionists. Count Bernadotte 
gave the explanation that he had sought a solution 
which took existing realities into account. Those 
existing realities did not differ from the fait 
accompli and might be subjected to the same 
criticism as was levelled against the nazis or 
the fascists when they too invoked the fait 
accompli. 

Another reality must be borne in mind, 
namely, that the legitimate inhabitants of 
Palestine were entitled to all the privileges 
normally granted to human beings. The Eco­
nomic and Social Council was making a detailed 
study of a Declaration of Human Rights. When, 
however, it was a question of applying those 
rights and thus permitting a community to live 
on its own territory without running the risk 
of being driven from it and of being obliged 
to appeal to the charity of the world, sedulous 
efforts appeared to be made to forget those 
human rights. 

In conclusion, the representative of Egypt 
noted that several representatives had advised 
the Arab representatives not to persist in their 
attitude and to enter into negotiations. No 
one was more interested in the maintenance 
of peace in Palestine than the Arabs. They 
wanted to achieve peace by every legitimate 
method ; but they would not degrade themselves. 
They did not want peace if it was to be bought 
at the price of giving up part of Palestine, which 
would subsequently serve as a base for aggression 
and would constitute a Zionist threat to the 
social structure and peace of the Middle East. 

Mr. AMMOUN (Lebanon) statedt hat his dele­
gation was opposed to any recommendation, 
which took into account the resolution of 29 No­
vember 1947, even as amended in the light of 
Count Bernadotte's proposals. The Arabs had 
rejected that resolution, which had constituted a 
violation of the Charter and of international 
law and had given rise to disturbances and war. 
He failed to understand how a conciliation 
commission could be set up on the basis of that 
resolution when one of the parties concerned 
rejected the resolution and announced in advance 
its refusal to collaborate with the commission. 
The Arabs had not refused to enter into relations 
with the Mediator, but they could not counte­
nance the existence of a commission, which 
accepted as an established principle the partition 
of Palestine against the will of its inhabitants. 
Since the Arabs had given warning that they 
would not recognize or collaborate with the 
commission, what was the point of adopting 
a resolution for its establishment ? It would 
certainly not enhance the prestige of the United 
Nations. 

The resolution of 29 November 1947 was 
obsolete. The representative of Haiti had recalled 
the Mediator's statement that he was not bound 
by the resolution of 29 November and the repre­
sentative of the United Kingdom had cast 
doubt on the validity of that resolution in the 
Security Council on two occasion5. Furthermore, 

il inclut Jaffa dans le territoire juif ; Haifa est 
repoussee de plus en plus dans la zone attribuee 
aux Juifs et toute la Galilee est offerte aux 
sionistes. Le comte Bernadotte explique qu'il a 
recherche une solution tenant compte des n~alites 
existantes. Ces n~alites existantes ne different 
pas du fait accompli et l'on pourrait refaire a 
leur sujet la critique que l'on adressait aux nazis 
ou aux fascistes lorsqu'ils invoquaient, eux aussi, 
le fait accompli. 

II faudrait cependant tenir compte d'une 
autre n~alite, a savoir que la population legitime 
de la Palestine a droit a to us les privileges norma­
lement accordes aux etres humains. Le Conseil 
economique et social etudie dans tous ses details 
une Charte des droits de l'homme; mais lorsqu'il 
s'agit d'appliquer ces droits et de permettre a 
une communaute de vivre sur son territoire sans 
courir le risque d' etre chassee et de devoir en 
appeler a la charite du monde, il semble que 
l'on s'empresse d'oublier ces droits de l'homme. 

Le representant de l'Egypte indique, pour 
terminer, que plusieurs representants ont conseille 
aux representants arabes de ne pas perseverer 
dans leur point de vue et d'entamer des nego­
ciations. Il declare a ce sujet que les Arabes, 
plus que tons autres, sont interesses au maintien 
de la paix en Palestine. Ils veulent la paix par tous 
les moyens Iegitimes qui ne constituent pas une 
degradation. Ils ne veulent pas Ia paix si elle doit 
etr 2 payee par la renonciation a une partie de la 
Palestine, qui servirait ulterieurement de base 
d'agression et constituerait une menace sioniste 
contre Ia structure sociale et la paix dans le 
Moyen Orient. 

M. AMMOUN (Liban) declare que sa delegation 
est opposee a toute recommandation faisant 
etat de la resolution du 29 novembre 1947, meme 
amendee en tenant compte des propositions 
du comte Bernadotte. Les Arabes ont repousse 
cette resolution, qui constituait une violation 
de la Charte et du droit international et qui etait 
generatrice de troubles et de guerre. L'orateur 
ne pent comprendre que, sur Ia base de cette 
resolution, on veuille creer nne Commission de 
conciliation puisque l'une des parties repousse 
cette resolution et refuse a l'avance de collaborer 
avec cette commission. Les Arabes n'ont pas 
refuse d'entrer en relations avec le l\lediateur, 
mais ils ne peuvent admettre !'existence d'une 
Commission qui prend comme axiome le partage 
de la Palestine contre le vceu de ses habitants. 
Pnisque les Arabes previennent qu'ils ne recon­
naitront pas cette commission et ne collaboreront 
pas avec elle, a quoi cela sert-il de voter ~ne 
resolution etablissant la Commission ? Le prestige 
de ]'Organisation des Nations Unies n'en serait 
certainement pas rehaussc. 

La resolution du 29 novembre 1947 est perimee. 
Le representant d'Hai:ti a rappele que le Mcdiateur 
avait declare qu'il n'etait pas lie par la resolution 
du 29 novembre et le representant du Royaume­
Uni au Conseil de securite a eleve, a deux reprises, 
des doutes sur la validite de cette resolution. En 
outre, le mandat du Mediateur, etabli par la 

811 



the terms of reference of the Mediator, as set 
forth in resolution 186 (S-2) of 1·1 l\Iay 19,18, 
made no reference to the resolution of November 
1947. By merely recommending a pacific 
se ttlement of the situation in Palestine, the l\Iay 
resolution completed what the resolution of No­
vembL'r had attempted to do. In any event, whether 
the resolution of 29 November was outdated 
or not, it was illegal. The representative of 
the United States had declared the day before 
that it did not constitute a law in the sense 
of the Charter. In the White Paper of Hl39 
the United Kingdom admitted that the provisions 
of the l\Iandate with regard to the Jewish national 
home had lJeen carried ont and considered it 
necessary to set up a unified and independent 
State of Palestine within five years in the course 
of which a final contingent of 75,000 Jews would 
he authorized to immigrate. l\1r. Bevin, in the 
speeches made on 13 November 19-15,25 February 
and 29 May 19,17, the first two in the House 
of Commons and the third at a public meeting, 
had aflirmed that (1) the United Kingdom 
had never envisaged the creation of a .Jewish 
State and the British l\Iandate over Palest ine 
had in fact been fulfilled ; (2) nothing in the 
trrms of the .:\1andate had authorized the United 
Kingdom to deprive the Arabs of their land, 
their rights and their liberties ; (3) religious 
considerations were insufllcient grounds for the 
creation of a new State. 1\ir. Bevin had also 
recalled that, since the House of Commons had 
approved the White Paper of 1939, the Arabs 
were entitled to regard that act as a decision 
by the Parliament of the United Kingdom. 
Thus the Parliament and the Government of the 
Mandatory Power supported the views of the 
Arabs. Their statements should take precedence 
over those of New Zealand, Australia and other 
States, which had not participated in the Mandate 
and had not borne the legal responsibility for 
the administration of Palestine. 

The representative of Lebanon went on to 
_invoke legal arguments against partition. The 
resolution of 29 November 1947 was a recommend­
ation only and, moreover, exceeded the powers 
of the General Assembly and the United Nations. 
In effect, the Assembly was not in a position 
to deal with the question of Palestine except 
by virtue of Article 77 of the Charter. If the 
conditions required for its independence had not 
been realized at the termination of the Mandate, 
Palestine could have been placed under trus­
teeship, but no provision of the Charter permitted 
an attack on the integrity of a mandated territory 
or its dismemberment. 

What of the United Nations ? It was an 
international organization, owing its existence 
to the will of the Member States, which renounced 
part of their own sovereignty in order to confer 
certain powers upon it. Those powers were limit­
ed by the Charter. The United Nations could not 
decide the political fate of a mandated territory 
or partition it at will. Further, in the case 
of Palestine, the Mandatory Power had terminated 
the l\1andate ; consequently, Palestine should 
automatically have acquired independence. When 
the Ottoman Empire was dismembered as a result 
of the Treaty of Lausanne, the League of Nation~ 
had recognized a number of new States - Saudi 

resolution 186 (S-2) du 14 mai, 1948 ne fait pas 
allusion a la resolution de novembre 1947. En 
preconisant seulement un ajustement pacifique 
de la situation en Palestine, la resolution de 
rnai supplee a ce que celle de novembre avait 
essayc de faire. D'ailleurs, que cette resolution 
du 29 novembre soit perimee ou non, elle est 
illegale. Le representant des Etats-Unis a declare 
hier qu'elle ne constituait pas une loi au sens de 
la Charte. Dans un livre blanc de 1930, le 
Royaume-Uni admettait que les dispositions du 
l\Iandat sur le Foyer National juif avaient etc 
realisces et cstimait necessaire de creer un Etat 
de Palestine, unific et independant, dans un 
dClai de cinq ans, pendant lequel un dernier 
contingent de 75.000 israclites serait autorisc 
a immigrer l\1. Bevin, dans les discours qu'il a 
prononces le 13 novembre 1945, le 25 fevrier 19:17 
et le 29 mai 19·17, les deux. premiers devant la 
Chambre des Communes et le troisieme dans 
une reunion publique, a affirme: I) que le Royaume­
Uni n'avait jamais envisage la creation d'un 
Etat juif et que le l\fandat britannique sur la 
Palestine avait cte rempli, en fait; 2) que rien 
dans les termes du l\Iandat n'autorisait le 
Royaumc-Uni a priver les Arabes de leurs terres, 
de leurs droits et de leurs libertes; 3) que des 
considerations rcligicuscs n' ctaient pas suffisantes 
pour crcer un nouvel f~tat. l\1. Bevin a rappele, 
en outre, que la Chambre des Communes ayant 
approuve le livre blanc de 1939, les Arabes 
etaient en droit de considcrer ce vote comme une 
decision du parlement britannique. Ainsi, le 
parlement et le gouvernement de la Puissance 
mandataire approuvent le point de vue des 
Arabes. Leurs declarations doivent prevaloir 
sur celles de la N ouvelle-ZClande, de l' Australie 
ou d'autres Etats qui n'ont pas participe au 
l\landat et n'avaient pas la responsabilite juridique 
de !'administration de la Palestine. 

Le representant du Liban invoque ensuite des 
arguments juridiqucs pour condamner le partage. 
La resolution du 29 novembre n'est qu'une 
recommandation qui depasse les Iimites des 
pouvoirs de I' Assemblce gcnerale et de !'Organi­
sation des Nations Unies. L'Assemblee, en efTet, 
ne pouvait se saisir de la question de Pale~tine 
qu'en vertu de !'Article 77 de la Charte. S1 les 
conditions requises pour l' independance de ce 
pays n'ctaient pas rcalisees ala fin du Mand~t.' la 
Palestine aurait pu etre placee sous le Reg1me 
de tutelle, mais aueune disposition de la Charte 
ne permet de porter atteinte a l'integrite d'un 
Territoire sons mandat ou de le demembrer. 

D'ailleurs qu'est !'organisation des Natio~s 
Unies? Cette organisation internationale d01t 
son existence a la volonte des :Etats Membres 
qui lui abandonnent chacun une p~rcelle d_e 
souverainete pour lui conferer certames attn­
butions. Ces attributions sont limitativement 
dcfinies par la Charte. L'Organisation ~e~ Nati?ns 
Unies ne pent disposer que du sort pohtlque_ d_ un 
Territoire sous mandat, elles ne pent le d1v1ser 
a sa guise. M. Ammoun declare, en out:e, que 
dans le cas precis de la Palestine, la Pu~ssance 
mandataire a mis fin au Mandat; par consequent, 
automatiquement, la Palestine ;devait aecedcr 
a l'independance. Lors du demembrement de 

812 



Arabia, Yemen, Syria, Lebanon and Palestine­
and placed some of them under l\Iandate. \Vhen 
the l\Iandate was terminated in Iraq, Syria and 
Lebanon, those countrirs automatically became 
l\Iembers of the League of Nations. By virtue of 
the principle of the continuity of the State, they 
had not ceased to be States, despite the temporary 
Mandate under which they had been governed. 
~Why should it be otherwise for Palestine ? 

It had been maintainer] chat, under the provi­
sions of article 116 of the Treaty of Lausanne, 
Turkey had ceded the sovereignty of those 
territories to the Allied Po~wers. But the text 
of article 116 covered all territories detached 
from the Ottoman Empire, among which Saudi 
Arabia and the Yemen had become independent 
immediately on ~,eparation from the Empire. 
In the circumstances, how could it be maintained 
that the case of Palestine was difierent from 
that of other States detached from the Ottoman 
Empire ? The signatories to the Treaty of 
Lausanne were the United Kingdom, France, 
Italy, Japan, Roumania, Greece and the State 
formerly known as the Kingdom of the Serbs, 
Croats and Slovenes. It was clear that all 
those States had not obtained sovereignty over 
the mandated territory of Palestine. The conclu­
sion to be drawn was that the Treaty of Lausanne 
recognized the existence of States and among 
them, Palestine. 

The Lebanese delegation therefore opposed 
the establishment of a conciliation commission 
on the basis of a resolution which was contrary 
to civil and natural law. Lebanon was not, 
however, opposed to the setting up of the commis­
sion provided in the draft resolution of Syria, 
'Which expanded the point of view expressed 
in a Lebanese proposal in 1947. The Lebanese 
representative hoped that the juridical questions 
he~ had raised would be considered and debated, 
if challenged. Those juridical reasons could 
not be ignored and the Committee was duty 
bound to reply to them. 

~Ir. HASSAN (Yemen) recalled that his dele­
gation had always disapproved of any form of 
partition, and that it had opposed the unjust 
resolution of 29 November 19,17. It would 
therefore necessarily vote against any resolution 
based either on the partition of Palestine or on 
recognition of a Jewish State ; for it would be 
based on an injustice and on an imposed solution. 

The delegation of Yemen was, however, not 
hostile to a solution really fair to both parties 
such as that proposed by the Syrian delegation. 
In fact, the establishment of a Commission 
to study the possibility of forming a single 
State on a cantonal or federal basis would be 
a measure of conciliation in the true spirit of 
the Charter. The Arabs, thereby giving still 
further proof of their desire to solve that distress­
ing question, were providing the possibility 
of an equitable solution, and it was the United 
Nations' last chance of restoring peace in Palestine, 
and serving the true interests of both parties 
concerned. 

!'empire ottoman par le Traite de Lausanne, la 
Societe des Nations a reconnu la formation d'un 
certain nombre cl'Etats nouveaux-Arabic saou­
clite, Yemen, Irak, Syrie, Liban et Palestine-, 
en soumettant certains de ceux-ci au regime du 
Mandat. Lorsque ce regime prit fin pour l'Irak, 
la Syrie et le Liban, ces pays clevinrent automa­
tiquement Membres de la Societe des Nations. 
En vertu du principe de la continuite de l'Etat, 
ils n'ont pas cesse cl'etre des Etats, malgre le 
manclat temporaire qui les rcgissait. Pourquoi 
n'en doit-il pas etre de meme pour la Palestine? 

On a soutenu que, aux termes de !'article 116 
du Traite de Lausanne, la Turquie aurait cede 
la souverainete de ces territoires aux Puissances 
alliees. Mais le texte de cet article 116 vise taus 
les territoires detaches de !'Empire ottoman, 
parmi lesquels l' Arabie saoudite et le Yemen sont 
devenus indepenclants immediatement apres avoir 
etc detaches dudit empire. Comment, dans ces 
conditions, peut-on dire que le cas de la Palestine 
est difierent de celui des autres Etats detaches de 
!'Empire ottoman ? Les Puissances signataires 
du Traite de Lausanne etaient le Royaumc-Uni, 
la France, l'Italie, le Japon, la Roumanie, la 
Grece et l'Etat jadis appele serbe-croate-slovene. 
II est clair que tous ces Etats n'avaient pas 
acquis la souveraincte sur le territoire sous manclat 
de la Palestine. La conclusion de tout cela est 
que le Traite de Lausanne reconnait !'existence 
d'Etats parmi lesquels se trouve la Palestine. 

La delegation clu Liban s'oppose clone a la 
creation cl'une commission de conciliation fonclce 
sur une resolution qui sc trouve en contradiction 
avec le droit positif et le droit nature!. Toutefois 
le Liban ne s'oppose pas a la creation de la 
commission prevue par le projet de la Syrie, qui 
tend a clevelopper le point de vue exprime en 
1947 dans une proposition libanaise. Le repre­
sentant clu Liban souhaite que les questions 
juridiques qu'il a soulevces soient prises en 
consideration et fassent !'objet d'un debat, si 
elles etaient contcstces. Ces raisons juricliques ne 
peuvent etre ignorees et la Commission se cloit 
d'y repondre. 

M. HASSAN (Yemen) rappelle que sa delegation 
a toujours clesapprouve toute idee de partage 
et qu'elle s'est clevee contre l'injuste resolution 
du 29 novembre 19~17. Elle ne peut clone que se 
prononcer contre toute resolution qui se foncle 
sur le partage de la Palestine ou sur la reconnais­
sance d'un :Etat juif, c'cst-:1-dire sur une injustice 
ct sur un Diktat. 

La dclCgation du Yemen n' est pourtant pas 
hostile a une solution vraiment equitable pour 
les deux parties, comme celle que propose la 
delegation de la Syrie. En effet, la creation d'une 
commission charge@ d'etudier la creation cl'un 
Etat unique sur une base cantonale ou fedcratiYe 
constituerait nne formule de conciliation veritable, 
conforme a !'esprit de la Charte. En montranl, 
une fois de plus, leur volontc de rcsoudre cctte 
clouloureuse question, les Arabes offrent la possi­
bilite cl'nne solution equitable et c'est la. pour 
!'Organisation des Nations Unics, la dernicrc 
chance de retablir la paix en Palestine ct de 
servir les intercts veritables des parties en presence. 

813 



The establishment of a Jewish State in Palestine, 
contrary to the wishes both of the inhabitants 
of Palestine and of the entire Arab and Islamic 
world, would ]Je a defiance of justice and common 
sense. Moreover, it might well be that those 
who were attempting to use a Jewish State to 
further their own ends might not be in a position 
to profit from the sacrifices they wanted to 
impose on the parties involved. On the other 
hand, the Syrian plan was such as to satisfy 
the Jews, or at least the non-fanatical Jews. 
On the other hand, the Zionist seemed to have 
succeeded in convincing both of the two great 
Powers which, like veritable colossi, were confront­
ing one another across the world, that it was 
in their interests to favour the establishment of 
a Jewish State. But the Arab world would 
awake, and the Zionists would pay dearly for 
their insult to the Arabs. Yet it was the Arabs, 
with their traditional wisdom, who were now, 
with full knowledge of the facts, coming forward 
with a just solution : the creation of a single 
State, in which foreigners would enjoy the 
same rights as the bona fide citizens. 

The Arabs were thus prepared to co-operate 
with the Jews ; but any proposal based on the 
partition of Palestine would make such co-oper­
ation impossible ; by violating international 
morality and the principle of the right of self­
determination, it would constitute an affront to 
the whole of Islam. Injustice might triumph 
for a short period, but justic;e would prevail in 
the end. The hundreds of thousands of Arab 
refugees would reassert their true rights, with 
the aid of all Moslems. While there was still 
time, therefore, the General Assembly of the 
United Nations should learn from the wisdom 
of the Arabs. It was better to return to justice 
than to persist in error. 

Mr. Hooo (Australia) stressed that the decision 
to be taken by the Committee as to which of the 
general statements contained in section III of the 
recapitulatory survey to include was a very 
important one. 

It was in a spirit of realism, and with the aim 
of achieving a workable solution, that the 
Australian delegation was making two statements 
of principle : one on the resolution of 29 No­
vember 1947, and the other on the establishment, 
since 15 May 1948, of the civil and military 
authority of the Provisional Government of 
Israel. 

In making those statements, the Australian 
delegation was saying nothing that did not 
already appear in the Mediator's report (A/648). 
And, in fact, paragraph 2 of the operative part 
of the United Kingdom draft resolution (AJC. 
lj394JRev.2) in taking note of the progress 
report of the ~ediator, did perhaps c?ntain an 
implied recogmtwn of ~he de facto ex1stenc~ ?f 
a Jewish State. But 1t seemed more reahsbc 
to make explicit mention of the civil and military 
authority of the Provisional Government of 
Israel. 

If the General Assembly wished to obtain 
positive results, it would do better to work on ~he 
basis of the resolution of 29 November, wh:ch 
,vas acceptable to at least one o~ the, parties, 
rather than on the basis of the Mediator s report 

La creation d'un Etat juif en Palestine, contrai­
rement a la volontc des habitants et a celle du 
monde arabe et de l'Islam tout entier, consti­
tuerait un defi a la justice et au bon sens. De 
plus, ceux-la memes qui cherchent a utiliser la 
creation d'un Etat juif a des fins interessees 
pourraient bien ne pas etre en mesure de profiter 
des sacrifices qu'ils cherchent a imposer aux 
parties. Par contre, le projet syrien est de nature 
a satisfaire les Juifs eux-memes, ou du moins 
ceux qui sont exempts de tout fanatisme. Quant 
aux sionistes, il semblent jusqu'ici avoir reussi 
a faire croire aux deux Puissances, veritables 
colosses qui s'affrontent aujourd'hui de par Je 
monde, qu'elles ont interet a favoriser la formation 
d'un Etat juif. Mais le monde arabe se reveillera 
et les sionistes paieront cher !'affront fait aux 
Arabes, dont Ia sagesse traditionnelle propose 
aujourd'hui, en connaissance de cause, !'equitable 
solution d'un Etat unique au sein duquel les 
etrangers jouiraient des memes droits que les 
citoyens authentiques. 

Ainsi, les Arabes sont prets a collaborer avec 
les Juifs : mais toute proposition fondee sur lc 
partage de la Palestine rendrait cette cooperation 
impossible et, en violant la morale internationale 
et le principe du droit des peuples a disposer 
d'eux-memes, offenserait l'Islam tout entier. 
L'injustice peut triompher temporairement, mais 
a Ia longue, c'est la justice qui prevaudra : les 
centaines de milliers de refugies arabes rentreront 
dans leurs droits avec I' aide de tousles musulmans. 
Aussi, pendant qu'il en est temps encore, que 
l'Assemblee generale des Nations Unies s'inspire 
de la sagesse arabe. Le retour a la justice vaut 
mieux que Ia persistance dans l'erreur. 

M. Hooo (Australic) souligne !'importance de 
la decision que prendra la Premiere Commission 
relativement a !'inclusion de l'une ou de l'autre 
des declarations de principe qui figurent a la 
section III du tableau recapitulatif. 

C'est dans un esprit de realisme et en vue 
d'aboutir a une solution pratiquement realisable 
que Ia delegation de I' Australie presente deux 
declarations de principe relatives, l'une a Ia 
resolution du 29 novembre 1947, et l'autre, a 
l'etablissement, depuis le 15 mai 1948, d'unc 
autorite civile et militaire relevant du Gouver­
nement provisoire d'Israel. 

En faisant ces constatations, la delt~gation 
australienne ne dit rien de vraiment nouveau 
par rapport au document soumis par le M~diat~~r 
(A f648). Et, de fait, le paragraphe 2 du drspos1bf 
du projet de resolution britannique, (A /C:l /~9_4 
Rev.2), en prenant note de ce rapport mten­
maire du Mediateur, renferme peut-etre une 
reconnaissance indirecte de l' existence de fait 
d'un Etat juif. Mais il semble plus. r~al_is~e de 
faire explicitement mention de l'autonte c1v!le. et 
militaire relevant du Gouvernement provrs01re 
d'Israel. 

Si l' Assemblee generale veut obtenir des 
resultats positifs, mieux vaut s_e fonder sur la 
resolution du 29 novembre, qut est acceptable 
au moins a l'une des parties, plutot que su: l~ 
rapport du Mediateur, qui est egalement reJctc 

814 



which had been repudiated by both Jews and 
Arabs. Moreover, any commission which might 
be set up, was entitled to receive specific instruc­
tions from the General Assembly, whatever 
might be its specific task. It was 'with that 
purpose in mind that the Australian delegation 
was submitting, jointly with the Polish delegation, 
a text which seemed to meet the views of the 
majority of members of the First Committee. 

Sir ZAFRULLAH KHAN (Pakistan) stated that 
any proposal based on the partition of Palestine 
and the establishment of an independent State 
of Israel would be unacceptable to his delegation. 

It had been said, it was true, that the J ewish 
State actually existed, and must therefore be 
recognized. But the existence of the J ewish 
State was in fact based on a peculiar form of 
aggression which had been pursued for the past 
thirty years, and had been facilitated by erroneous 
interpretations of the Balfour Declaration and 
the Mandate. More recently, Jewish aggression 
had assumed an open form : and it was that 
aggression, that use of force, which the United 
Nations was now being asked to approve. But 
what had been accomplished by force, force 
should also be able to undo. 

It had often been repeated, it was true, that 
Pakistan, itself a state born of territorial partition, 
should be the last to refuse to approve the 
partition of Palestine. But Pakistan naturally 
reserved the right to judge every problem on 
its own merits. What were the main factors 
of the situation which had resulted in the birth 
of the State of Pakistan ? Firstly, the propor­
tions of the problem, ethnically, t erritorially 
and economically, were so different that compa­
rison between India and Palestine was out of 
the question. For jnstance, the population 
of Pakistan was 80 million, i.e., more than a hundred 
times that of the Jewish population of Palestine ; 
and the disproportion between the territory 
involved was even more striking. Secondly, 
in India, partition had been accepted. If both 
Jews and Arabs came to regard partition as the 
only possible solution, and came to an agreement 
on that basis the Pakistan delegation would 
be the first to vote in favour of the partition 
of Palestine, regardless of the doubts which 
might be expressed about the practicability 
of such a solution. Thirdly, whereas in India 
the Moslem minority was an integral part of 
the population, in Palestine a minority had been 
artificially created, against the express will 
of the people. Fourthly, the Moslem minority 
in India, having reached the conviction that in 
the circumstances partition was the only possible 
solution, had claimed the regions where the 
Moslems were in a majority, and each of those 
regions was several times the area of Palestine. 
Thus - and that was the main point - the 
partition which had taken place in India had been 
based on the principle of ceding to the minority 
a number of areas in which they were in the 
majority. If that was what the Jews were 
asking for, Pakistan would be willing to grant 
their request. But the method applied in India 

815 

par les Juifs et par les Arabes. D'autre part, la 
commission qui viendrait a etre etablie, quel que 
soit son role exact, est en droit de recevoir de 
l' Assemblee generale des instructions specifiques. 
C'est dans cet esprit que la delegation de 
l' Australie presente, de concert avec la delegation 
de Ia Pologne, un texte qui lui parait correspondre 
au sentiment de Ia majorite des Membres de Ia 
Premiere Commission. 

Sir ZAFRULLAH KHAN (Pakistan) declare que 
sa delegation ne saurait accepter aucune propo­
sition reposant sur le partage de Ia Palestine et 
Ia creation d'un Etat d'Israel independant. 

Sans doute a-t-on dit que l',Etat juif existait 
et que, par suite, il fallait le reconnaitre. Mais en 
n~alite, cet Etat repose sur une forme particuliere 
d'agression qui s'est poursuivie pendant ces 
trente dernieres annces et s'est developpee a Ia 
faveur de la Declaration Balfour et du Mandat, 
faussement interpn\tes. D'autre part, plus 
recemment, l'agression juive a opere a visage 
decouvert : et c'est a ces faits, a !'usage de la 
force que I' on demande maintenant !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies de donner son approbation. 
Mais ce que la force a fait, la force doit pouvoir 
le defaire. 

L'on a dit et repete, il est vrai, que le Pakistan, 
ne d'un partage t erritorial, devrait etre le dernier 
a refuser son approbation au partage de la Pales­
tine. Mais le Pakistan se reserve naturellement le 
droit de juger de chaque probleme sur ses merites 
propres. QueUes sont done les caracteristiques 
essentielles de I' etat de chases qui a donne nais­
sance a l'Etat du Pakistan? En premier lieu, 
les proportions memes, ethniques, territoriales 
et economiques, excluent Ia possibilite d'une 
comparaison entre les Indes et Ia Palestine. 
C'est ainsi que la population du Pakistan est de 
80 millions d'habitants, c'est-a-dire plus de cent 
fois Ia population juive de Palestine; la dispro­
portion est encore plus frappante du point de 
vue territorial. En deuxieme lieu, aux Indes, Ia 
solution du partage a ete acceptee. Si Juifs et 
Arabes venaient a envisager le partage comme Ia 
seule solution possible et se mettaient d'accord 
sur cette base, la delegation du Pakistan serait 
la premiere a se prononcer en faveur du partage 
de la Palestine, et ce quels que soient les doutes 
que l'on puisse emettre sur les possibilites 
pratiques qu'offrirait une telle formule. En 
troisieme lieu, la minorite musulmane aux Indes 
etait partie integrante de la population, alo~s 
que, en Palestine, il s'est agi de Ia creation arti­
ficielle d'une minorite, en violation de la volonte 
formelle des habitants. En quatrieme lieu, la 
minorite musulmane aux Indes etant parvenue 
ala conviction que le partage etait, en l'occurence, 
la seule solution possible, a reclame les regions 
ou les musulmans se trouvaient en majorite et 
chacune de ces regions couvre une superficie 
plusieurs fois superieure a cel1e de Ia Palestine. 
Ainsi, et c'est Ia l'essentiel, le partage qui s'est 
opere aux Indes a repose sur Je principe de !'attri­
bution a une minorite de zones oil elle constituait 
la majorite de la population. Mais si c'etait hi ce 
que demandaient les Juifs, le Pakistan lui-nu~me 
serait tout pret a faire droit a leur req_uete. 
Seulement, ce qui a ete fait aux Indes est map-



·was inapplicable to Palestine because the Jews 
were in a minority everywhere, excPpt in one 
out of fourteen sub-districts, that of JaiTa. 

The Pakistan delegation was prepared to waive 
the objections it had raised against the Balfour 
Declaration, the l\Iandate, and the adminis­
lration of the l\Iandate, and to consider the 
problem as it stood : i.e., the problem of the 
presence of 650,000 Jews, regardless of their 
origin, as against 1,300,000 Arabs. But on 
what basis had partition been proposed ? On 
the fact that a minority could not he condemned 
to remain for ever a minority? So he it. But 
tlwn how could the Arabs be condemned to 
minority status within a Jewish State ? 

It "·as possible that the voting in the First 
Committee might result in the establishment 
of a Jewish Stale based on aggression ami force. 
But how could such a State live in peace and 
prosper in view of the hostility of the Palestine 
Arabs and the neighbouring States ? How 
could the security and prosperity of a Jewish 
State he assured, in the circumstances, by 
the General Assembly and by .Jewish military 
forces ? 

In reality, the only possible solution of the 
Palestine problem was one which would assure 
eo-operation of Jews and Arabs, and v.'hich, if 
not approved by the neighbouring Arab States, 
would at any rate be tolerated by them. To 
llnd such a solution was the only worthwhile 
aim of the First Committee and the General 
Assembly. ·Merely to ratify a de facto situation 
would not solve the problem, but would merely 
result in causing disturbances which might 
in the end have world-\vide repercussions. 

The resolution of 29 November 1947 had been 
a desperate remedy, and had proved to be worse 
than the disease. The United Nations should 
therefore pause and reflect. \Vhile it was 
urgently necessary to bring about the cessation 
of fighting, careful consideration was necessary 
before a final solution could be evolved. 

The Pakistan delegation, for its part, could 
not subscribe to a solution which merely accepted 
a state of aiTairs brought about by aggression 
and force and ignored all considerations of 
principle. The Pakistan delegation approved 
the Syrian draft resolution in the hope that the 
commission provided for in that draft would 
succeed in working out a solution acceptable 
to Je·ws and Arabs, and at least tacitly approved 
by the Arab S~ates neighbours of Palestine. 

The meeting rose at 12.55 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND EIGHTEENTH 
MEETING 

II eld at the Pal a is de Chaillot, Paris, on 
Tuesday, 30 November 1948, at 3 p.m. 

Chairman : Mr. A. CosTA nu RELS (Bolivia). 

816 

plicable en Palestine, puisque Ies Juifs constituent 
partout nne minorite, a !'exception d'une region 
administrative sur quatorze, celle de Jaffa. 

La ddegation du Pakistan est prete a faire 
abstraction des objections qu'elle a formulees 
contre la Declaration Balfour, contre le Mandat 
et contre !'administration du Mandat et a envi­
sager le probleme tel qu'il se pose aujourd'hui, 
c'est-a-dire la presence de 650.000 Juifs, 
abstraclion faite de leur origine, a cote de 1.300.000 
Arabes. 1\Iais sur quoi s'est-on fonde lorsqu'on a 
propose Ia solution du partage? Sur l'impossi­
bilite de condamner une minorite ii. demeurer 
toujours telle. Soit, mais alors, comment 
condamner les Arabes a un statut de minorite 
au sein d'un Etat juif? 

Il est possible que les votes a Ia Premiere 
Commission aboutissent a la creation d'un Etat 
juif foncte sur l'agression et sur Ia force. Mais 
comment cet Etat pourrait-il vivre en paix et 
prosperer en presence de l'hostilite des Arabes 
de Palestine et des Etats avoisinants ? Comment 
les forces militaires juives et l'Assemblee generale 
pourraicnt-elles, dans ces conditions, assurer Ia 
securitc et Ia prospcrite d'un Etat juif? 

En rcalitc, la seule solution possible du probleme 
palestinien est celle qui assurerait Ia cooperation 
des Juifs ct des Arabes et qui, ii. defaut de !'appro­
bation des Etats arabes voisins, beneficierait 
de leur tolerance. Tel est le seul objectif valable 
pour Ia Premiere Commission et pour l'Assemblee 
gcnerale. Quant ii. enteriner un pur etat de fait, 
ce n'est pas Ia une solution veritable; ce serait 
l'origine de troubles qui pourraient, finalement, 
a!Iecter le monde entier. 

La resolution du 29 novemhre 1947, remede 
desespere, s'est avcrce pire que le mal. L'Organi­
sation des Nations Unies doit done se reprendre 
et mediter. Si la cessation des combats est un 
obj ectif urgent, la solution definitive doit Ctre 
murement etudiee. 

La delegation du Pakistan, pour sa part, ne 
saurait souscrire a une solution se bornant a 
accepter le rcsultat de l'agression et de la force, 
en dehors de toute consideration morale. La 
delegation du Pakistan se prononce en fave~r 
du projet de resolution de la Syrie, dans l'espo1r 
que I a commission dont ce pro jet envisage. la 
formation aboutira a !'elaboration d'une solutiOn 
que lcs J uifs et les Arabes puis sent a?cepter. et 
qui bcneficie au moins de l'approbatwn tacite 
des Etats arabes voisins de la Palestine. 

La seance est levee a 12 h. 55. 

DEUX-CENT-DIX-HUITIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le mardi 30 novembrs 1948, a 15 heures. 

President: 1\1. A. CosTA nu RELS (Bolivie). 




